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LOCATION NOTE 

HUNUNGTOWER is situated z\ miles N.W. of Perth 
within 200 yards of the Perth-Crieff road. There is a conve 
’bus service from Perth Railway Station. 

Times of Opening— 

April to September: Weekdays 10 a.m. to 7 p.m. 
Sundays 2 p.m. to 7 p.m. 

Sundays 2 p.m. to 4 p.m. 

Charge for Adult 6d. 
Charge for Child 3d. 



HUNTINGTOWER 
PERTHSHIRE 

By J. S. RICHARDSON, LL.D., F.S.A. Scot. 
Formerly Inspector of Ancient Monuments for Scotland 
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Historical Notes HUNTINGTOWER, or the "House” or 
as it was called prior to 1600, stands in the 

The family of Ruthvei 
lands of which they wer< 
The first known ancestor was Thor, son of Swein who cm, m 
Perthshire from East Lothian towards the end of the 12th cent,,™ 
His grandson. Sir Walter of Ruthven, who“ ved to^fitt S If 
the 13* century, was apparently the first of the family to adopt the 
name which became so well known in Scottish history. P 

for^rii^mKomlvf'fCi1 IT f°r aTtilSfuMd as hostage by the English 
WiHiam, Frist Lord Ruthven, was created aL^rd IfPaririSem ™dfr 

•William, the second Lord Ruthven, was Provost of Perth an 

a^deTltSv tof ^ KeCP“ °f the PriW Seal.’ He 
and co hSess rfPato k T \ « iT™8' Wi'h Jonet’ ddest d“ghter ' Rv tfi; u °Ppf«ck Lord Halyburton ofDirleton in EastLothian. 
By this alliance Dirleton Castle and its lands became Ruthven property 

Patrick, the third Lord Ruthven, w?s educated at St. Andrews and 
tTuhTd f T^f8 n°MeS Wto suPP°«cd *e Reformers in the troubled times of Queen Mary’s reign. He was one of DarnWs 

“ST- Prindpal Participant in the tnntdcr of L 8“ s &™unte, Riccio, at Holyrood, in March 1566. In this afikir 
• p son William who succeeded him was also implicated. Both fled to 

England, where the father died, but the heir returned to Scotland 
after receiving the Royal pardon. 



„ . _.ed against the Queen’s divorce and was present 
>n of the infant James at Stirling in 1567. In 1571 he 

was Treasurer of Scotland during the King’s mine— ~» “ *'** 
King created him Earl of Gowrie by charter ui 
which erected the Earldom , ut of the Monastery of Sc 

sr the Great Seal 

The Raid of Ruthven, 1582 
The episode known as “The Raid of Ruthven,” an important event 

in Scottish history, took place in the oistle “Vouf 
with other dissatisfied nobles, desired Crf ^ra^o ramphth 

stSU^“ol“dcd by th; young K^g’s 
this they seizeu p pr returning south from his favourite 

tuning "district of Athole. On the rand of 
August he was visited by the Earls of Mar and Gowrie, the Lords 
Lindsay Boyd, and others, who by constraint and persuasion induced 
Linds y, y fQ ^ House of Ruthven, where that mght 

sembled in great numbers. Next morning the King 
:he throng of people in and about the place. The 
Lg entered his appartment, presented him with a 
. . , , _j t unnnr or,A Arran of beme the conspirators, having enterea ms app— 

remonstrance in which they accused Lent 
authors of oppressions and wrongs which could no longei 
and which tended to ruin the Commonwealth and cause th, 
of the Protestant religion. The young King rcceI™dt“e 
with the complaisance enforced by his slt“t10"’ " , 
his departure, was told that he would not be permitted 

. expostulate and threaten, and finding all without effect bv 
~ w--*-- 0f Glamis is then reported to have said, 

vindicate their 
declare himself a perfectly 

On the evening of the day following the King’s arrival at Rt 
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to Robert Bruce of Geletts and then in 1649 to James, second Earl of 

acquired the property by purchase in 1663. 

The Earl of Tullibardine died without issue and the Castle and 
lands passed by marriage into the family of Atholl. The building was 
a Dower House, when in 1760 the Dowager Duchess of Atholl resided 
there. After her death it was occupied by a colony of calico printers. 

Captain Francis Grose, a friend of Robert Burns (“A chiel’s amang 
you takin’ notes and faith he’ll prent it”), visited the building in 1790 
and has recorded in a drawing the portion of the building which no 
longer exists. Several years before this, Charles Pennant, another 
English traveller, visited Huntingtower and relates the following 
supposed incident in an account of a tour in Scotland:— 

A daughter of the first Earl of Gowrie was courted by a young 
gentleman of inferior rank, whose pretensions were not countenanced 
by the family. When a visitor at the Castle, he was always lodged in a 
separate tower from the young lady. One night, however, “before 
the doors were shut she conveyed herself into her lover’s apartment; 
but some prying Duenna acquainted the Countess with it, who cutting 
off, as she thought, all possibility of retreat, hastened to surprise them. 
The young lady’s ears were quick—she heard the footsteps of the old 
Countess, ran to the top of the leads, and took the desperate leap 
of 9 feet 4 inches over a chasm of 60 feet, and luckily lighting on the 
battlements of the other tower, crept into her own bed, where her 
astonished mother found her, and of course apologised for her unjust 
suspicion. The fair daughter did not choose to repeat the leap, but 

This extraordinary exploit has given the name of “The Maiden’s 
Leap” to the space between the two towers, which were originally 

The building was transferred in 1912 to the guardianship of the 
Commissioners of His 'Majesty’s Works and Public Buildings by the 
late Major Lindsay Mercer, and has been put into a*thorough state of 







THE PAINTED CEILING AND PLASTERED WALLS 
(i6th century) 
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In the space between the two Towers there is evidence of an early 
doorway protected on the outside by a loophole in the east wall of 
the western tower. The original hall was on the first floor of the 
eastern tower; it was remodelled when the underlying vault was 
introduced, and again in the 17th century. The removal of pine 
panelling and late plaster work in' 1913 revealed wall plaster of early 
16th century date, and the painted wooden ceiling, circa 1540, and 
probably the earliest of the Scottish tempera-painted ceilings now in 
existence in any dwelling. The ceiling panels are ornamented with a 
knotwork pattern drawn in black on a white ground. One, however, 
shows a running stem and leaf pattern. The designs on the joists are 
in three simple patterns and are carried out in black and white on a 
yellow ground, black and white on a red ground, and white on a 

and pear-like fruit, scrolls and zoomorphic patterns. On the west 
side of the central beam there are depicted within panels, a hound, a 
dragonesque head with the neck emerging from a foliaceous cluster, 
a human-headed lion, a foliaceous and “strap-work” design terminating 
in dragonesque heads and another design of foliaceous character. 
The traces of the painted decoration on the plaster, however, suggest 
a slightly earlier period. 

Over the small window in the west wall is a representation of a 
hare; and on the jambs, window head, and arched soffit, can be traced 
a design of flowing conventional branches, stems and leaves in red 
and blue-green, and clusters of grapes in black outline; on the arch a 
running hind is entwined. Part of an angel figure, outlined in black, 
is on the north jamb and on the south jamb can be traced the outline 
of a nude figure with the hands held in an attitude of fear or supplica¬ 
tion; the portrayal suggests a representation of the Expulsion from 
the Garden of Eden. On the wall close to the window is a lion passant 
guardant executed in red. Further fragments of painting can be seen on 
the plaster to the west of the later large window in the south wall and 
also faintly at the window near fihe north-east corner. 

Another feature of interest is an aumrie or wall-press which has a 
cavity below, once fitted with a slip lid; this construction is unusual. 
The aumrie was formed in a window recess blocked for the purpose, 
as a substitute for a large one. which occupied the position of the 
present window to the west of the fireplace. 

The garderobes of the tower are in the south-west angle 
the Hall floor the passage giving access to the garderobe seems 
opened through a doorway on to the walk of the early curta 

to have 

- 



The secpnd floor room has a fine fireplace with moulded jambs, 
bases and capitals carrying a plain stone lintel surmounted by a narrow 
moulded cornice; it is of a type dating from the end of the 15th or 
beginning of the 16th century. There is a small aumrie on the north 
side of the fireplace, and a large one, once fitted with double doors 
and a shelf, near the west end of the room on the north wall. The 

feature. Over this room was a garret. 

the one side of which are traces of a doorway. Alterations on this 
feature have made the reading of it difficult, but it is possible that a 
doorway at one time opened on to a bridge connecting the western 
tower. The wall-walk retains its saddle and gutter stones, and the 
rainwater drains through spouts projecting beyond the face of the 
parapet. The parapets were originally higher. A bell may have hung 
at the small window on the west gable of the garret. 

The western tower, also of three storeys and a garret, is somewhat 
larger than its neighbour and stands with its greater axis north and 

storey above the rest. The turnpike stair in the north-west corner is 
entered from the first floor, but does not appear to be the original. 
The ground floor, now occupied by the caretaker’s house, was once 
fortified with loopholes, and entered from a doorway on the east side 
and may have contained at an earlier period a vaulted pit-prison. The 
garderobes are situated in the west wall and those of the jamb close 
to the angle formed by the latter wall, and the north wall of the jamb. 
In the room on the first floor, near the entrance to the stair, there are 
traces of mural painting on the plaster, and in the west window recess 

yellow lozenge-shaped frame; dexter appears to represent Erskine and 
sinister, Ruthven. In this connection it is interesting to note that John 
Erskine of Dun, killed at Flodden in 1513, was the second husband 
of Margaret, daughter of William, first Lbrd Ruthven. The painting, 
is of the same date as that in the Hall of the east tower and by the 

house with fresh food. Above the steps leading to the wall walk of the 





APPENDIX 

Ancient Mo?iuments and Historic Buildings 

Many of the most famous ancient buildings of Great Britain 
are maintained by the State in the care of the Ministry of Works. 

the spot and mfy be obtained from the Sales Offices of H.M. 
Stationery Office at the addresses given on cover page four. Those 
now available are listed below. Prices in brackets include postage. 

MINISTRY OF WORKS OFFICIAL GUIDES ? 





Llawhaden Castle, Pembrokeshire, a 
pe Tower. N< 

. U; {id.) 
Osborne, Isle of Wight, gd.; (rid.) 

le, Cornwall, id.; (id.) 

Rievaubt Abbey, Yorkshire. a 
Roche Abbey, Yorkshire, id.; (id') 
St. David’s, Bishop's Palace, Pembrokeshire, id.; 
St. Mawes Castle, Cornwall, id.; (id.) 
Scarborough Castle and Headland, Yorkshire, id. 
Stonehenge, Wiltshire, id.; (id.) 
Strata Florida Abbey, Cardiganshire, id.; (3d.) 

Thetford Priory, Norfolk, id.; (3d.) 

id.; (id.) 



Plan of Ground Floor 

Plan Showing Original Entry 

Plan of Second Floor 

— 15th Century 

— Late 15th, Early 16th Century 

— Mid l6™ Century 

— 17th Century 

— Modern 
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